
Securing Water Resilience for the San Gabriel Valley

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
REGULAR MEETING

248 E. Foothill Blvd., Suite 200  -  Monrovia, CA.  91016

626 443 2297

www.upperdistrict.org

info@usgvmwd.org

February 11, 2026 
4:30 p.m.



248 E. Foothill Blvd., Suite 200 

Monrovia, CA, 91016   
P: 626-443-2297 E: info@usgvmwd.org upperwater.org 

A REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF 

DIRECTORS 

Wednesday, February 11, 2026 
4:30 P.M. 

Page 1 of 3 

AGENDA 

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. ROLL CALL OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

4. ADOPTION OF AGENDA [1]

5. PUBLIC COMMENT

As provided under Government Code Section 54954.3, members of the public may address the

Board on items considered on this agenda, as well as items not on the agenda that are within the

jurisdiction of the Board.  Please complete the appropriate speaker’s card and submit it to the Board

Secretary.   A three-minute time limit on remarks is requested.

6. COMMITTEE REPORTS [2]

(a) Water Resources and Facility Management Committee (Treviño, Chair – Garcia,

Vice-Chair) Minutes of meeting held on February 02, 2026 enclosed.

(b) Administration and Finance Committee (Santana, Chair - Treviño, Vice-Chair)

Minutes of meeting held on February 03, 2026 enclosed.

(c) Government Affairs and Community Outreach Committee (Fellow, Chair-Chavez,

Vice-Chair) Minutes of meeting held on February 4, 2026 to be distributed.

7. CONSENT CALENDAR [1]

(a) Minutes of a regular meeting of the Board of Directors held on January 28, 2026 at

4:30 p.m.

(b) List of Demands

(c) Financial Reports – December 2025

1. Financial Statements

2. Director’s Public Outreach

(d) Federal Bill Positions: H.R. 5566, S. 3590, H.R. 6783 and S. 3526 which are consistent

with Upper Water’s 2025-26 Legislative Policy Principles adopted by the Board in

January 2026.



Page 2 of 3 

248 E. Foothill Blvd., Suite 200 

Monrovia, CA, 91016   
P: 626-443-2297 E: info@usgvmwd.org upperwater.org 

(e) Approve an amendment to the District’s adopted budget for Fiscal Year 2025/26

for the Board approved (11/12/2025) additional discretionary payment of $500,000

to CalPERS

(f) Approve an amendment to the fiscal year 2025/26 budget for the Board approved

purchase of water from the MWD Cyclic Storage account in the amount of $6.84M

(g) Receive and file the Mid-Year Financial report.

(h) Membership Renewal for Water Education for Latino Leaders

8. ACTION/PRESENTATION ITEMS [1]

(a) SB 707 Ethics Overview (Martin Koczanowicz, District Counsel, will provide a

presentation).

9. INFORMATION ITEMS [2]

(a) Press Releases and News Articles

10. ATTORNEY’S REPORT [2]

11. ENGINEER’S REPORT [2]

12. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT [2]

13. METROPOLITAN REPORT [2]

14. WATER QUALITY AUTHORITY REPORT [2]

15. WATERMASTER REPORT [2]

16. AB 1234 COMPLIANCE REPORT [2]

17. DIRECTOR’S COMMENTS [2]

18. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS [1]

19. ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION – CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATOR;

Government Code section 54956.8

Property: 2444 Huntington Drive, Duarte, CA 91010

District Negotiator: Thomas A. Love

Negotiating parties: Upper San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District; 2444 Huntington

LLC

Under negotiation: Terms of potential acquisition



Page 3 of 3 

248 E. Foothill Blvd., Suite 200 

Monrovia, CA, 91016   
P: 626-443-2297 E: info@usgvmwd.org upperwater.org 

20. ADJOURNMENT – To a regular meeting of the Board of Directors to be held on

March 11, 2026 at 4:30 p.m. at 248 E. Foothill Blvd. Room #103, Monrovia, CA 91016.

LEGEND: [1] INDICATES ACTION ANTICIPATED BY BOARD OF DIRECTORS ON THIS ITEM

[2] INDICATES INFORMATION ITEM - NO BOARD ACTION NECESSARY

PRESIDENT KATARINA GARCIA, PRESIDING 

American Disabilities Act Compliance (Government Code Section 54954.2(a)) 

To request special assistance to participate in this meeting, please contact the District office at (626) 443-2297. 

http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/File:International_Symbol_for_Deafness.jpg
https://www.google.com/imgres?imgurl=http://integrityrm.net/wp-content/uploads/2014/01/ADA.jpg&imgrefurl=http://integrityrm.net/highlands-ranch-property-management-americans-with-disabilities-act-ada/&docid=EZRKaRCeVFQeNM&tbnid=t9wTnjnuqiQ2iM:&w=451&h=451&ei=ffxGU_iFCMutlQWB2YDgDQ&ved=0CAIQxiAwAA&iact=c


248 E. Foothill Blvd., Suite 200 

Monrovia, CA, 91016   
P: 626-443-2297 E: info@usgvmwd.org 

MEMORANDUM 

UPPER SAN GABRIEL VALLEY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

6. (a)

COMMITTEE 

REPORT 

February 2, 2026 

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

FROM: WATER RESOURCES AND FACILITY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

SUBJECT: MINUTES OF THE WATER RESOURCES AND FACILITY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE AND 

SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS – FEBRUARY 2, 2026 

ATTENDANCE: Katarina Garcia (Vice-Chair) 

Ed Chavez 

Jennifer Santana 

Tom Love 

Patty Cortez 

Venessa Navarrette  

Katherine Vazquez 

Martin Koczanowicz 

Jenny Savon 

Stan Chen 

Kelly Gardner 

Justin Nakano  

Anteneh Tesfaye 

Lenet Pacheco 

1. Call to Order.

2. Public Comment. None.

3. Urban Water Management Plan Process.

General Manager, Tom Love, introduced Stan Chen of Stetson Engineers, who presented on Upper

Water’s 2025 Urban Water Management Plan (UWMP). The UWMP is a state-required plan completed

every five years that projects water demands and supplies, supports long-term reliability planning,

and is required for eligibility for certain state funding. The plan is due to the Department of Water

Resources by July 1, 2026.

The UWMP reviews water use, available supplies, conservation efforts, and planning for normal and

dry-year conditions, and includes a Water Shortage Contingency Plan. Upper Water is coordinating

with the Metropolitan Water District and its member agencies. A draft plan is expected in spring 2026,

with a public hearing and Board adoption planned before submitting the final plan to the state

ahead of the deadline.

Director Santana asked for clarification on one of the PowerPoint slides.

4. IRP Findings.

Mr. Love and Ms. Jenny Savon presented an update on Upper Water’s Integrated Resources Plan

(IRP) which is currently underway, with completion targeted for April. The IRP evaluates how Upper

Water can maintain reliable supplies under future uncertainties, including changes in water demand,

climate impacts on local supplies, and the reliability of imported water from MWD. Staff noted long-

term per-capita water use has declined and is expected to remain relatively flat, though potential

new demands such as data centers will need evaluation.



upperwater.org 

The plan uses recent severe drought conditions (2012–2022) and MWD’s planning scenarios to test 

how the Main San Gabriel Basin’s Key Well levels would perform under different supply conditions. 

Even under MWD’s more challenging scenarios, modeling shows the basin can generally be kept 

within its operating range using existing tools, including imported water purchases, cyclic storage 

programs with MWD, and Watermaster management programs that allow water to be stored in 

wetter years for later use. A comparison scenario showed that future Pure Water supplies would 

further improve basin reliability. 

Key local resources—groundwater storage, stormwater capture, recycled water, and long-standing 

basin management—were highlighted as regional strengths. Regional options such as Pure Water 

Southern California, ocean desalination research, and water transfer and exchange programs were 

also noted. Next steps include outreach to producers, Board workshops, and finalizing the IRP this 

spring. 

5. Water Supply Update.

Mr. Love provided a water supply update, noting that while recent precipitation has been significant,

shifting climate patterns are resulting in a "snow drought." Although rainfall reached 130% of average,

the Sierra snowpack is only at 45% due to warmer winters and increased evapotranspiration. This

trend mirrors the record-dry conditions of 2022, where a wet December was followed by a dry spring

due to a persistent high-pressure ridge. Despite these concerns, the short-term outlook is positive; the

State Water Project allocation has increased to 30%, and MWD’s current surplus offers opportunities

for cyclic water deliveries at USG-3, pending the management of golden mussel concerns.

Locally, the Main San Gabriel Basin is in an exceptionally strong position. The Key Well has surpassed

260 feet, marking its highest elevation since 1998. This is largely due to the active release of captured

December rainwater from Morris and San Gabriel Dams. With regional spreading grounds currently

at capacity and basin levels continuing to rise, the district is well-positioned to manage potential

supply uncertainties in the coming months.

Director Garcia inquired about current El Niño conditions.

6. Golden Mussel Update.

Mr. Love credited Watermaster and staff for progress in negotiations with the County Director of Public

Works. The County has shown a renewed willingness to engage, potentially allowing for the activation

of a key connection to the San Gabriel Canyon basins soon. This connection is important for regional

stability, though current deliveries from Morris Dam are providing an adequate operating supply to

the basins in the interim.

Additionally, MWD is collaborating with the County to evaluate infrastructure risks associated with the

golden mussel, which staff believe are less significant than the County's initial assessments. While the

USG-3 connection may not be active this spring, there is a goal to begin deliveries by summer. If

successful, the district intends to secure 40,000 acre-feet or more of MWD cyclic water.

7. Other Matters.

NEXT MEETING: Monday, March 2, 2026, at 4:30 p.m. 

cc: General Manager  



248 E. Foothill Blvd., Suite 200 

Monrovia, CA, 91016   
P: 626-443-2297 E: info@usgvmwd.org 

MEMORANDUM 

UPPER SAN GABRIEL VALLEY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT upperwater.org 

6. (b)

COMMITTEE 

REPORTS

February 4, 2026 

TO:  BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

FROM:  ADMINISTRATION AND FINANCE COMMITTEE 

SUBJECT: MINUTES OF THE ADMINISTRATION AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING AND SPECIAL 

MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS – February 3, 2026 

ATTENDANCE:  Jennifer Santana, Chair      Thomas Love  Judy Lancaster     

Charles Treviño, Vice-Chair         Patty Cortez  Martin Koczanowicz 

 Katarina Garcia       Venessa Navarrette  Chris Lancaster 

 Ed Chavez  Priscilla Lu      Karl Meng 

1. Call to Order

2. Public Comment.  None

3. Quarterly Investment Update – December 31, 2025.

Judy Lancaster, Interim Chief Financial Officer, introduced Mr. Karl Meng, Portfolio Strategist from

Chandler Asset Management (Chandler), to present the investments managed by Chandler as of

the quarter ended December 31, 2025. Mr. Meng presented a summary of the District’s portfolio

holdings including investment performance, portfolio composition, and historical average purchase

yield. He stated that the District’s investments portfolio remains in full compliance with California

Government Code and the District’s Investment Policy.

The General Manager stated that investment benchmarks and liquidity needs will be reviewed as

part of the upcoming reserve and investment policy review.

This item was presented for information purposes only.  No action was taken by the Committee.

4. Mid-Year Review with Budget Amendments.

Ms. Lancaster requested Committee consideration on approval of two budget amendments,

including an additional discretionary payment of $500,000 to CalPERS, and a $6.84 million purchase of

water from Metropolitan Water District Cyclic Storage. She then presented the mid-year financial

overview, highlighting the district’s operating revenue, operation expenses, cash and investments,

and change in fund balances for the period ended December 31, 2025.



Director Treviño and the General Manager discussed the long‑term nature of the cyclic storage water 

purchase. The General Manager explained that the cyclic storage water purchase as a long-term 

investment with anticipated returns of 8–10%, rather than short-term liquidity. 

Following discussion, the item was forwarded to the Board with a recommendation from the 

Committee. 

5. FY 2025-26 Budget Schedule.

Ms. Lancaster outlined the schedule for developing revenue and expenditure projections, updating

goals and objectives, and preparing proposed initiatives. She explained that the schedule is slightly

modified from prior years due to a later start.

Director Treviño and the General Manager discussed the inclusion of policy reviews, including director

benefits, as part of the broader budget process.

Following discussion, the item was forwarded to the Board with a recommendation from the

Committee.

6. Accounting Procedure Improvements.

The General Manager provided an oral report summarizing recent improvements to accounting

procedures and internal controls implemented during the transition in financial management.

Ms. Lancaster reported that a total of 17 procedural improvements has been implemented to improve

efficiency, strengthen controls, and enhance compliance with generally accepted accounting

principles.

Director Santana expressed her support for the changes and improved transparency.

The General Manager reported on potential future improvements, including consolidation of multiple

checking accounts to further simplify monitoring and reconciliation.

This item was presented for information purposes only. No action was taken by the Committee.

7. Other Matters.

The General Manager provided an update on Metropolitan Water District’s draft budget, which

proposes average annual rate increases of approximately 9.5% over the next two years. He indicated

that due to existing Watermaster agreements and purchasing strategies, the direct impact to District

surcharge rates is expected to be limited.

  NEXT MEETING:  Tuesday, March 03, 2026 at 4:30 p.m. 

  cc: General Manager 



 

 

248 E. Foothill Blvd., Suite 200 

Monrovia, CA, 91016   

 

 

 

P: 626-443-2297 E: info@usgvmwd.org 

MEMORANDUM 

 

UPPER SAN GABRIEL VALLEY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

 

 

6. (c) 

COMMITTEE  

REPORT 

February 04, 2026 

 

TO:   BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 

FROM: GOVERNMENT AFFAIRS AND COMMUNITY OUTREACH COMMITTEE MEETING AND SPECIAL 

MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 

SUBJECT: MINUTES OF THE GOVERNMENT AFFAIRS AND COMMUNITY OUTREACH COMMITTEE 

AND SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS – September 03, 2025 

 

ATTENDANCE: Anthony Fellow (Chair) 

Ed Chavez (Vice Chair) 

Katarina Garcia 

Jennifer Santana 

Charles Trevińo 

Tom Love 

Patty Cortez 

Steve O’Neill 

Ana Schwab 

Madeline Voitier 

Lowry Crook 

Michael Brain 

Terry McHale 

Paul Hernandez 

Venessa Navarrette 

Katherine Vazquez 

Alexis Silva 

 

1. Call to Order. 

 

2. Public Comment. None. 

 

3. Legislative Update. 

 

a. Washington D.C. 

 

Ana Schwab of Best, Best & Krieger (BBK) began her report by noting that the previously 

“compromised” version of the appropriations bill which was signed into law two Fridays ago. As 

a result, several agencies were not funded after subsequent changes to the agreement, 

triggering a partial shutdown. The House later voted to exit the shutdown and is currently 

operating under a 12–13 day continuing extension related to the Department of Homeland 

Security (DHS) bill. 

 

Ana reported ongoing tension as stakeholders await further developments in the DHS bill and 

FY27 appropriations. The DHS bill also includes FEMA funding, which is critical for local agencies, 

as rebuilding, recovery, and resilience efforts related to last year’s Eaton wildfire remain a top 

priority for the region. Local agencies are closely monitoring developments to better 

understand the impacts on FEMA programs included within the DHS bill. 

 

The House Transportation and Infrastructure Committee has begun hearings on the Water 

Resources Development Act (WRDA), legislation that authorizes programs and projects for the 



 

upperwater.org 

 

U.S. Army Corps of Engineers. WRDA portals have also opened for submissions to Senators 

Padilla and Schiff in advance of the upcoming WRDA bill. BBK, on behalf of Upper, submitted a 

proposal to support water deliveries, storage, and groundwater recharge. The submission 

emphasized the intent previously advanced by former Congresswoman Grace Napolitano to 

ensure water supply remains a core provision within Army Corps programs and project 

authorities. 

 

The Bureau of Reclamation released its draft Environmental Impact Statement for the Colorado 

River, with public comments open through March 2. February 14 serves as a key pressure point 

for the seven-state agreement. 

 

In PFAS-related litigation, the D.C. court declined to grant the EPA’s request to dismiss the 

Maximum Contaminant Levels (MCL) case, which challenges EPA’s hazard determinations. Ana 

also reported ongoing arguments related to the CERCLA designation and whether the EPA 

conducted a full cost-benefit analysis as required under the Administrative Procedures Act. The 

timeline for EPA action will be dependent on the court’s decisions. 

  

Ana concluded her presentation by highlighting bills on which the team is working closely with 

staff and congressional delegates to include language related to the San Gabriel Mountains 

and Rivers, focusing on designations and protections that support the district’s operational 

priorities. 

 

Director Fellow followed up on the D.C. report, inquiring about the EPA Region 9 leadership and 

whether a formal appointment has been made. 

 

b.  Sacramento 

 

Terry McHale of Aaron Read & Associates reported that today marks the last day to overturn 

Prop 50. The U.S. Supreme Court has ruled that Prop 50 is in effect, and an immediate response 

is expected as candidates announce their races for the new Congressional seats. A special 

election will be held in the old district to replace recently passed Congressman Doug LaMalfa, 

with the winner serving a shortened term until the next general election. Terry also provided a 

memo on the gubernatorial race, noting the unique situation state finds itself and various 

outcomes. Interestingly, a Republican could potentially be elected as governor, while unlikely, 

it remains conceivable. 

 

Terry also provided updates on legislation, noting that the Legislature is currently in a between-

session period and the new bill deadline is February 20th. 

 

Terry highlighted two marquee issues in his report. The first is the Delta Conveyance Project 

(DCP) and the uncertainty over whether the Legislature will take up the issue this year. The 

second is the golden mussel and language clean-up efforts for AB 149, with the Assembly 

Water, Parks, and Wildlife Committee Chair will convene a special informational hearing on the 

golden mussels. Assemblywoman Diane Papan is supporting efforts related to the bill, which 

seeks to establish a statewide policy for decontamination and a grant program to support 

mitigation efforts. 



 

upperwater.org 

 

 

Director Chavez followed with a discussion of the LaMalfa seat, including potential candidates 

for both the congressional seat and the governor’s race. 

 

4. Federal Bill Summaries and Positions 

 

Patty Cortez, Assistant General Manager, introduced the following four bill positions for committee 

consideration. The bill positions considered: 

 

H.R. 5566 – Water Infrastructure Resilience and Sustainability Act - Support 

S. 3590 – Water Infrastructure Resilience and Sustainability Act - Support 

H.R. 6783 – San Gabriel Mountains, Foothills, and Rivers protection Act ˗ Oppose unless Amended 

S. 3562 – PUBLIC Lands Act ˗ Oppose unless Amended 

 

Director Garcia requested clarification and a definition of the term “wild and scenic rivers” as 

referenced in the proposed bill positions. 

 

The committee approved staff recommendations (2-0) and moved the item forward for full Board 

approval. 

 

5. WELL Sponsorship 

 

Patty Cortez presented the item along with guest Paul Hernandez, Executive Director for Water 

Education for Latino Leaders (WELL), and discussed WELL’s request to increase membership to 

$15,000 annually. Upper Water has been an associate member of WELL for over 10 years. The 

committee discussed a $5,000 membership increase, which Patty confirmed fits within the 

Community Outreach membership budget of $145,000. 

 

Paul highlighted the 14-year partnership and the growth of the WELL Program, as well as efforts to 

promote inclusion in the water industry, including the Untapped Fellowship Program, legislative 

workshops, new study-abroad opportunities, and annual conferences such as the SoCal Water 

Summit. 

 

The committee approved staff recommendations (2-0) and moved the item forward for full Board 

approval. 

 

6. Year End Review and Look Ahead for Outreach 

 

Water Resource Analyst Kat Vazquez provided a brief update on Upper’s conservation programs 

and upcoming initiatives. Last year, 450 kits were distributed, and the plant voucher funding is nearly 

exhausted. She also highlighted updates to the Watershed Restoration Program, noting 

approximately 200 total volunteers and additional opportunities to collaborate with the U.S. Forest 

Service in restoring the San Gabriel River Watershed. 

 

Kat also discussed the budget for Metropolitan utilized rebates and upcoming community projects, 

including the Turnkey Turf Program in Baldwin Park, as well as other projects requested by cities. 



 

upperwater.org 

 

 

Patty and Kat discussed potential changes to the FY 2026–2027 budget, which will include new 

campaigns, “Water Talks”, alternative water education and workshop resources, and increased 

collaboration with UC Master Gardeners and local producers to support these projects. 

 

7. Other Matters.  

 

Patty brought to the Board’s attention that staff has requested a spot bill for potential golden mussel 

legislation to Assemblywoman Blanca Rubio. The request has been accepted, and we will be 

working with Rubio’s office and the City of Burbank to develop language.  

 

NEXT MEETING: Wednesday March 04, 2026, at 4:30 p.m.  

cc: General Manager  



13529 

   UPPER SAN GABRIEL VALLEY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

         Wednesday, January 28, 2026 | 4:30pm 

A regular meeting of the Board of Directors was called to order at 4:30pm at the District office located at 248 E. 

Foothill Blvd, Rm. 103, Monrovia, California. The presiding officer was President Katarina Garcia.  

ROLL CALL DIRECTORS 

PRESENT: 

Treviño, Chavez, Garcia, Fellow, and Santana 

DIRECTORS 

ABSENT: 

None 

STAFF 

PRESENT: 

Tom Love, General Manager; Patty Cortez, Assistant 

General Manager; Martin Koczanowicz, District 

Counsel; Steve Johnson, District Engineer; Venessa 

Navarrette, Executive Assistant/Board Secretary I; 

Yesenia Bugarin, Community Outreach Intern 

OTHERS PRESENT Jose Martinez, Mai Hattar 

ADOPTION OF AGENDA On motion by Vice President Fellow, second by Director Treviño, the 

agenda was adopted by the following vote: 

AYES: TREVIÑO,GARCIA, CHAVEZ, FELLOW AND SANTANA 

NOES: NONE 

ABSTAIN: NONE 

ABSENT: NONE 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT None. 

COMMITTEE REPORTS None. 

CONSENT CALENDAR On motion by Director Treviño, second by Secretary Santana, the 

consent calendar was approved by the following vote: 

AYES: TREVIÑO,GARCIA, CHAVEZ, FELLOW AND SANTANA 

NOES: NONE 

ABSTAIN: NONE 

ABSENT: NONE 

(a) Minutes of a regular meeting of the Board of Directors held on

January 14, 2026 at 4:30 p.m.

Item 7. (a) Minutes



13530 

APPOINTMENT OF A REPRESENTATIVE 

AND AN ALTERNATE TO THE 

ASSOCIATION OF CALIFORNIA WATER 

AGENCIES JOINT POWERS 

INSURANCE AUTHORITY (JPIA) 

The General Manager reported on the need to appoint a 

representative and an alternate to the Association of California 

Water Agencies Joint Powers Insurance Authority (ACWA JPIA). He 

explained that ACWA JPIA administers the District’s liability, 

workers’ compensation, and employee health insurance programs. 

Secretary Santana nominated Tom Love, General Manager, as the 

representative, and Patty Cortez, Assistant General Manager, as 

the alternate to the ACWA JPIA. 

On motion by Secretary Santana, second by Vice President Fellow, 

the appointment of a representative, Tom Love, and an alternate, 

Patty Cortezto Association of California Water Agencies JPIA was 

approved by the following vote:  

AYES: TREVIÑO,GARCIA, CHAVEZ, FELLOW AND SANTANA 

NOES: NONE 

ABSTAIN: NONE 

ABSENT: NONE 

APPOINTMENT OF A REPRESENTATIVE 

AND AN ALTERNATE TO THE SAN 

GABRIEL VALLEY WATER 

ASSOCIATION (SGVWA) 

The General Manager presented the appointment of a 

representative and an alternate to the San Gabriel Valley Water 

Association. The Association includes all water agencies within the 

San Gabriel Valley. He noted that the current representative is Vice 

President Fellow, with President Garcia serving as the alternate. 

Treasurer Chavez nominated himself to serve as the representative 

and Vice President Fellow as the alternate. 

On motion by Treasurer Chavez, second by Director Treviño, the 

appointment of a representative, Director Ed Chavez and an 

alternate, Director Anthony Fellow, to the San Gabriel Valley Water 

Association was approved by the following vote:  

AYES: TREVIÑO,GARCIA, CHAVEZ, FELLOW AND SANTANA 

NOES: NONE 

ABSTAIN: NONE 

ABSENT: NONE 
 

APPOINTMENT OF A REPRESENTATIVE 

TO THE SAN GABRIEL VALLEY 

PROTECTIVE ASSOCIATION (SGVPA) 

The Board considered the appointment of a representative to the 

San Gabriel Valley Protective Association. The Association is 

composed of multiple water agencies throughout the San Gabriel 

Valley and meets annually. Secretary Santana expressed interest in 

continuing to serve as the District’s representative.  

On motion by Treasurer Chavez, second by Director Treviño, the 

appointment of Director Jennifer Santana as representative to the 

San Gabriel Valley Protective Association was approved by the 

following vote:  

AYES: TREVIÑO,GARCIA, CHAVEZ, FELLOW AND SANTANA 

NOES: NONE 

ABSTAIN: NONE 

ABSENT: NONE 
 



13531 

POTENTIAL CONFLICT WAIVER FOR BEST 

BEST & KRIEGER LAW FIRM   

The General Manager informed the Board of a request from Best 

Best & Krieger (BBK) regarding a potential conflict of interest after 

the firm notified the District that one of its attorneys has been 

retained by Los Angeles County for the Golden Mussel issue. The 

General Counsel recommended granting a waiver, noting that BBK 

has established an ethical wall between the two representations..  

On motion by Director Treviño, second by Secretary Santana, the 

waiver of potential conflict for Best Best & Krieger was approved by 

the following vote:   

AYES: TREVIÑO,GARCIA, CHAVEZ, FELLOW AND SANTANA 

NOES: NONE 

ABSTAIN: NONE 

ABSENT: NONE 

PURE WATER OF SOUTHERN 

CALIFORNIA UPDATE  

Mai Hattar, chief engineer from the Metropolitan Water District of 

Southern California provided an update on the Pure Water  

Southern California project and upcoming decisions before the 

Metropolitan Board. Hattar reviewed Metropolitan’s history of 

major regional water infrastructure and emphasized the agency’s 

continued capacity to plan and construct large-scale projects 

while staying committed to conservation. She also summarized key 

program components, highlighted recent progress, and outlined 

regional benefits. 

Director Treviño asked whether Arizona and Nevada have agreed 

to interim agreements, noting the importance of their participation. 

Vice President Fellow highlighted Hattar’s work and asked whether 

additional major agencies were expected to publicly support the 

project.   

The General Manager explained the importance of advancing the 

75 MGD phase, with Director Treviño raising questions about 

project costs and Secretary Santana asking about any external 

opposition to the program.  

SB 707 ETHICS OVERVIEW Presentation by the District Counsel will be provided at a future 

board meeting.  

INFORMATION ITEMS The following items listed on the agenda were presented as 

informational items and ordered received and filed:  

• Press Releases and News Articles

ATTORNEY’S REPORT The District Counsel reported that he worked on the BBK conflict 

waiver. He plans to attend the Watermaster hearing on February 5 

regarding the Golden Mussel matter. He will report back on his 

observations at the next meeting. 



13532 

GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT The General Manager requested the Assistant General Manager 

provide an update on the recruitment for the Director of Finance/ 

Finance Manager position. The Assistant General Manager reported 

that three candidates have been selected for interviews, which are 

scheduled for February 13th . The recruitment will remain open until 

a suitable candidate is identified. The General Manager also noted 

the need for additional administrative support related to HR 

functions following last year’s internal transition of administrative 

duties.  

An update was provided on the Golden Mussel issue. The General 

Manager noted that progress is being made on resuming deliveries. 

The General Manager also referenced an article included in the 

Board packet regarding potential water demand from emerging 

data centers. Director Treviño expressed concern about potential 

impacts of data centers on regional water supplies. He emphasized 

the need to study and evaluate the potential demand. President 

Garcia agreed on the need for additional information and 

emphasized keeping communities informed. Staff will begin 

gathering information and will report back at a future meeting.  

The General Manager revisited the Board’s interest in holding a 

retreat. Staff will begin identifying potential dates, venues, and a 

facilitator.  

DIRECTORS’ COMMENTS Director Treviño requested that the meeting be adjourned in 

memory of Alex Pretti, a U.S. Department of Veteran Affairs ICU nurse 

who was recently killed in Minnesota.  

Vice President Fellow noted ongoing concerns related to Hoover 

Dam and reservoir levels at Lake Mead and Lake Powell. He 

provided brief updates from recent Metropolitan committee 

meetings, including discussions on the Delta Conveyance Project 

and Colorado River negotiations. Vice President Fellow expressed 

optimism about continued progress on Colorado River negotiations 

and acknowledged Metropolitan staff for their leadership.  

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS Secretary Santana requested that a discussion regarding the 

Metropolitan Water District of Southern California appointment be 

placed on a future agenda. Director Trevino seconded the request. 

District Counsel will provide the SB 707 Ethics Overview presentation 

at a future meeting.  

ADJORN TO CLOSED SESSION The Board adjourned to closed session under Government Code 

Section 54956.8 to discuss potential real property negotiations. 

District Counsel reported that staff were given instructions, and no 

reportable action was taken. This concludes the closed session 

report. 



13533 

ADJOURNMENT President Garcia asked if there was any other business to come 

before the Board. There being none, the meeting was adjourned in 

memory of Alex Pretti, to a regular meeting of the Board of 

Directors to be held on February 11, 2026, at 4:30 p.m. 

ATTEST 

_________________________________ 

SECRETARY 

SEAL 

__________________________________ 

PRESIDENT 



Payment History Report

UPPER SAN GABRIEL VALLEY MWD (USG)

Sorted By Check Number

Activity From: 1/8/2026 to 1/31/2026

Bank Code: A  GENERAL FUND

Invoice NumberInvoice Date Invoice Amount

Check

Date Check AmountName

Check

Number/

ACWA/JOINT POWERS INSUR. AUTH.1/15/20260000023264 35,866.69 

07080501/6/2026  35,866.69

AMERICAN LEGION POST 2411/15/20260000023265 1,000.00 

01/09/26EC1/9/2026  1,000.00

ATHENS SERVICES1/15/20260000023266 321.59 

209039731/1/2026  321.59

CALIFORNIA WATER EFFICIENCY1/15/20260000023267 177.42 

PUB812-2301/14/2026  177.42

CITY OF MONROVIA1/15/20260000023268 173.82 

260609681/15/2026  173.82

CIVIC PUBLICATIONS1/15/20260000023269 5,500.00 

19571/1/2026  5,500.00

FOOTHILL MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT1/15/20260000023270 2,500.00 

80412/31/2025  2,500.00

IMAGE 2000, INC.1/15/20260000023271 377.81 

8236331/7/2025  377.81

INDUSTRY PUBLIC UTILITIES COMM1/15/20260000023272 2,484.64 

DEC 251/12/2026  2,484.64

JOEY C. SOTO1/15/20260000023273 1,821.25 

2025-UD-GA-DEC-1351/3/2026  1,821.25

JOHN ROBINSON CONSULTING, INC.1/15/20260000023274 4,620.00 

UD202301-231/1/2026  4,620.00

KELLY SERVICES, INC.1/15/20260000023275 1,673.00 

56132341861/1/2026  553.00

56133849451/1/2026  560.00

56134503241/8/2026  560.00

SAN GABRIEL VALLEY WATER ASSN1/15/20260000023276 100.00 

01/01/261/1/2026  100.00

SIERRA VISTA HIGH SCHOOL1/15/20260000023277 350.00 

01/09/26JS1/9/2026  350.00

TPX COMMUNICATIONS1/15/20260000023278 1,329.15 

188693229-01/1/2026  1,329.15

ACWA1/26/20260000023279 1,000.00 

02/11/26UD1/14/2026  1,000.00

BLACK BIRD FIRE PROTECTION, INC.1/26/20260000023280 495.00 

203910120261/20/2026  495.00

CALIFORNIA CONTRACT CITIES1/26/20260000023281 6,500.00 

5159581/16/2026  6,500.00

CITY OF ARCADIA1/26/20260000023282 165.00 

04/01/26UD1/13/2026  165.00

CITY OF COVINA PARKS & REC. DEPT.1/26/20260000023283 1,000.00 

2026KG1/20/2026  1,000.00

CITY ELECTRIC1/26/20260000023284 325.00 

72231/19/2026  325.00

DEPARTMENT OF WATER & POWER1/26/20260000023285 83.33 

GA4418671/7/2026  83.33

DISCOVERY SCIENCE CENTER1/26/20260000023286 5,261.00 

22371/12/2026  5,261.00

ENVIRONMENTAL CONTROL1/26/20260000023287 1,800.00 

19855-4111/1/2026  1,800.00

GARDEN VIEW, INC.1/26/20260000023288 14,864.06 

0114261/14/2026  10,166.87

INV-1231251/1/2026  4,697.19

HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES1/26/20260000023289 416.32 

52162831/21/2026  416.32

A/P Date:

Run Date:

2/5/2026

2/5/2026   5:10:55PM 1Page:

Item 7. (b) List of 
Demands



Payment History Report

UPPER SAN GABRIEL VALLEY MWD (USG)

Sorted By Check Number

Activity From: 1/8/2026 to 1/31/2026

Bank Code: A  GENERAL FUND

Invoice NumberInvoice Date Invoice Amount

Check

Date Check AmountName

Check

Number/

KELLY SERVICES, INC.1/26/20260000023290 1,473.93 

56134746471/15/2026  1,473.93

THE KID-FIT PRESCHOOL HEALTH1/26/20260000023291 750.00 

05/16/26UD1/9/2026  750.00

PUBLIC STORAGE1/26/20260000023292 518.00 

FEB 261/21/2026  518.00

QUALITYIMPRINT1/26/20260000023293 853.87 

QI448791/14/2025  853.87

SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON1/26/20260000023294 2,456.27 

DEC-JAN 26F1/20/2026  2,442.29

OCT-JAN 26W1/8/2026  13.98

VERIZON WIRELESS1/26/20260000023295 223.26 

61332369371/10/2026  223.26

789, INC.1/29/20260000023296 5,750.00 

UW-6212101/21/2026  5,750.00

ALEXIS SILVA1/29/20260000023297 144.50 

JAN 261/26/2026  144.50

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES1/29/20260000023298 509.04 

1Y77-M41T-WYGY1/20/2026  509.04

APPLETON ELECTRIC1/29/20260000023299 1,200.00 

2861/14/2026  1,200.00

CALIFORNIA WATER EFFICIENCY1/29/20260000023300 2,260.24 

MD-2026-2301/1/2026  2,260.24

DE LAGE LANDEN FINANCIAL1/29/20260000023301 305.29 

5954860451/21/2026  305.29

DSD BUSINESS SYSTEMS1/29/20260000023302 400.00 

01042611/1/2026  400.00

HERNAN QUEZADA1/29/20260000023303 250.00 

01/27/26UD1/27/2026  250.00

KATHERINE VAZQUEZ1/29/20260000023304 109.70 

JAN 261/26/2026  109.70

PROMO DIRECT1/29/20260000023305 3,019.78 

N1922541/26/2026  3,019.78

SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON1/29/20260000023306 19,515.10 

DEC-JAN 261/26/2026  19,515.10

SOCALGAS1/29/20260000023307 26.85 

DEC-JAN 261/27/2026  26.85

STETSON ENGINEERS, INC.1/29/20260000023308 1,555.00 

2533-008-0011/27/2026  1,555.00

VC3, Inc.1/29/20260000023309 2,200.00 

INV3566205VC31/15/2026  2,125.00

INV3566265VC31/28/2026  75.00

Bank A Total:  133,725.91

A/P Date:

Run Date:

2/5/2026

2/5/2026   5:10:55PM 2Page:



Payment History Report

UPPER SAN GABRIEL VALLEY MWD (USG)

Sorted By Check Number

Activity From: 1/8/2026 to 1/31/2026

Bank Code: B  WATER FUND

Invoice NumberInvoice Date Invoice Amount

Check

Date Check AmountName

Check

Number/

CENTRAL BASIN MWD1/29/20260000001363 2,503.22 

USGV-DEC251/15/2026  2,503.22

CITY OF INDUSTRY CITY HALL1/29/20260000001364 6,384.00 

R12312025-D1/1/2026  6,384.00

CITY OF INDUSTRY CITY HALL1/29/20260000001365 4,126.40 

R12312025-E1/1/2026  4,126.40

SAN GABRIEL VALLEY M.W.D.1/29/20260000001366 20,547.80 

5841/27/2026  20,547.80

SUBURBAN WATER SYSTEMS1/29/20260000001367 1,940.83 

68101/24/2026  1,940.83

Bank B Total:  35,502.25

A/P Date:

Run Date:

2/5/2026

2/5/2026   5:10:55PM 3Page:



Payment History Report

UPPER SAN GABRIEL VALLEY MWD (USG)

Sorted By Check Number

Activity From: 1/8/2026 to 1/31/2026

Bank Code: E  WIRE TRANSFER

Invoice NumberInvoice Date Invoice Amount

Check

Date Check AmountName

Check

Number/

METROPOLITAN WATER DISTRICT1/29/20260000060006 484,370.81 

120551/1/2026  484,370.81

Bank E Total:  484,370.81

Report Total:  653,598.97

A/P Date:

Run Date:

2/5/2026

2/5/2026   5:10:55PM 4Page:



Item 7. (c-1) 
Financial Reports











































Item 7. (c-2) 
Financial Reports













248 E. Foothill Blvd., Suite 200 

Monrovia, CA, 91016   
P: 626-443-2297 E: info@usgvmwd.org 

MEMORANDUM 

UPPER SAN GABRIEL VALLEY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT upperwater.org 

 Item 7. (d) 

CONSENT 

Date: February 11, 2026 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Government and Community Affairs Committee and General Manager 

Subject: Federal Bill Summaries and Positions 

Recommendation 

The Government and Community Affairs Committee recommend approval for the following federal 

bills: H.R. 5566, S. 3590, H.R. 6783 and S. 3526 which are consistent with Upper Water’s 2025-26 

Legislative Policy Principles adopted by the Board in January 2026. 

Federal Bill Analysis 

H.R.5566 – Water Infrastructure Resilience and Sustainability Act 

Introduced in the House on September 26, 2025, by Rep. Carbajal, Salud O. [D-CA-24]. 

Summary: The Water Infrastructure Resilience and Sustainability Act would reauthorize three critical 

water infrastructure funding programs housed at EPA through 2031years (FY2027–FY2031) that are set 

to expire next year. These programs include the Drinking Water System Infrastructure Resilience and 

Sustainability Program, the Midsize and Large Drinking Water System Infrastructure Resilience and 

Sustainability Program, and the Clean Water Infrastructure Resiliency and Sustainability Program. 

Action: On December 1, 2025, the bill was referred to the House Subcommittee on Water Resources 

and Environment by the Committee on Transportation and Infrastructure. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Support 

S. 3590 – Water Infrastructure Resilience and Sustainability Act

Introduced in the Senate on January 7, 2026, by Sen. Lisa Blunt Rochester [D-DE].

Summary: This is the Senate companion bill to H.R. 5566.

Action: On January 7, 2026, the bill was referred to the Senate Committee on Environment and Public

Works.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Support

H.R. 6783 – San Gabriel Mountains, Foothills, and Rivers protection Act 

Introduced in the House on December 17, 2025, by Rep. Judy Chu [D-CA-28]. 

Summary: The San Gabriel Mountains, Foothills, and Rivers Protection Act would designate new 

wilderness areas and wild and scenic rivers in California and modify the boundaries of the San Gabriel 

Mountains National Monument. Of concern, the legislation lacks clear definitions related to water 

infrastructure and water use, as well as explicit provisions to protect water rights. The bill as written 

would create uncertainty for the continued operation, maintenance, and long-term planning of 

existing water infrastructure within the San Gabriel River watershed. Similar legislation introduced 

during the 118th Congress included language intended to address these operational considerations. 

https://www.congress.gov/bill/119th-congress/house-bill/5566?q=%7B%22search%22%3A%22hr+5566%22%7D&s=2&r=1
https://www.congress.gov/bill/119th-congress/house-bill/6783/text?s=1&r=1&q=%7B%22search%22%3A%22hr6783%22%7D


UPPER SAN GABRIEL VALLEY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT upperwater.org 

Action: On December 17, 2025, the bill was referred to the House Committee on Natural Resources. 

Congressman Gil Cisneros (D-CA-31) is a co-sponsor of the bill. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Oppose unless Amended 

S. 3562 – PUBLIC Lands Act

Introduced in the Senate on December 17, 2025, by Sen. Alex Padilla [D-CA].

Summary: The PUBLIC Lands Act is a comprehensive public lands package that would protect and

restore more than 1.7 million acres of public lands across northwest California, the Central Coast, and

Los Angeles County. The package includes multiple land management and conservation provisions,

including H.R.6783, the San Gabriel Mountains, Foothills, and Rivers Protection Act, which raises

concerns related to water infrastructure operations and water rights protections.

Action: On December 17, 2025, the bill was referred to the Senate Committee on Energy and Natural

Resources. Senator Adam Schiff (D-CA) is a co-sponsor of the bill.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Oppose unless Amended

https://www.congress.gov/bill/119th-congress/senate-bill/3526/text?s=6&r=13&q=%7B%22search%22%3A%22alex+padilla%22%7D
https://www.congress.gov/bill/119th-congress/house-bill/6783/text?s=1&r=1&q=%7B%22search%22%3A%22hr6783%22%7D


248 E. Foothill Blvd., Suite 200 

Monrovia, CA, 91016   
P: 626-443-2297 E: info@usgvmwd.org 

MEMORANDUM 

UPPER SAN GABRIEL VALLEY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT upperwater.org 

Item 7. (e-g) 

CONSENT 

DATE: February 11, 2026 

TO:  Board of Directors  

FROM: Administration and Finance Committee and General Manager 

SUBJECT:  Amendment of the Budget for Fiscal Year 2025/26 for Payment of Unfunded Pension Actuarial 

Liability (UAL) and Purchase of Cyclic Water from MWD and, Mid-Year Financial Report 

Recommendation 

Administration and Finance Committee recommend that the Board of Directors: 

1. Approve an amendment to the District’s adopted budget for Fiscal Year 2025/26 for the Board

approved (11/12/2025) additional discretionary payment of $500,000 to CalPERS;

2. Approve an amendment to the fiscal year 2025/26 budget for the Board approved purchase of

water from the MWD Cyclic Storage account in the amount of $6.84M;

3. Receive and file the mid-year financial report.

Background 

Pension Liability 

From 2022 to 2024, the Board of Directors authorized additional discretionary payments (ADP) to CalPERS 

totaling $2 million. These additional payments increased the District’s funded ratio from 72% to 88% as of the 

most recent valuation report on June 30, 2024. The District’s unfunded accrued liability (UAL) for pension 

amounts to $1.83 million as of the last valuation. This additional payment of $500,000, approved at the 

November 12, 2025 Board meeting could potentially save the District about $281,000 in interest payments 

over 10 years using CalPERS’ current discount rate of 6.8%.  

Cyclic Water Purchase 

At the November 12, 2025 meeting the Board approved the purchase of 7,500 acre-feet of water from the 

MWD cyclic storage account. This water purchase was not included in the fiscal year budget. This 

recommendation makes the appropriate budget adjustment. 

Mid-Year Financial Trend Summary 

As of December 31, 2025, the mid-year financial indicate that both revenues and expenditures are tracking 

favorably against the FY 2025–26 adopted budget, with variances primarily due to timing differences. Year-

to-date operating expenses represent approximately 79% of the total operating budget remaining, largely 

attributable to the deferral of water purchase payments and program expenses scheduled for later in the 

fiscal year. Administrative expenses include the annual CalPERS unfunded liability contribution; certain costs, 

such as election-related expenditures, will be recognized at fiscal year-end. Water purchase expenditures 

are significantly under budget at mid-year, as large untreated water and cyclic storage purchases are 

planned for the second half of the year. Operating revenues remain below budget levels at this point, with 

approximately 71% of the budget remaining, primarily due to the recognition of untreated water sales in 



 

 

 

subsequent periods. Overall, operations have generated a positive net position through December,  

supporting reserve levels and maintaining financial stability as the District enters the second half of the fiscal 

year. 

 

 

 

Attachment 

 



I
 U

P
P
E
R
 

�
 

W
AT

ER
 

U
P

P
E

R
 S

A
N

 G
A

B
R

IE
L

 V
A

L
L

E
Y

 M
W

D
 

� ·� 
·&

' 
.... 

,:· 
. 

F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
 S

U
M

M
A

R
Y

 A
S

 O
F

 D
E

C
E

M
B

E
R

 3
1

, 
2

0
2

5
 

A
M

O
U

N
T

 O
F

 
P

E
R

C
E

N
T

 O
F

 
F

Y
 A

C
T

U
A

L
 

F
Y

 A
C

T
U

A
L

 
F

Y
 2

02
5

-2
6

 
B

U
D

G
E

T
 

B
U

D
G

E
T

 
E

x
e

e
n

s
e

s
 

M
O

N
T

H
 

Y
E

A
R

-T
O

-D
A

T
E

 
B

U
D

G
E

T
 

R
E

M
A

IN
IN

G
 

R
E

M
A

IN
IN

G
 

A
dm

in
is

tr
at

iv
e 

E
xp

en
se

s 
$ 

66
5,

22
6 

$ 
1,

72
1,

20
8 

$ 
2,

89
2,

00
0 

$ 
1,

17
0,

79
2 

40
.5

%
 

W
at

er
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

P
ro

gr
am

 
15

5,
75

3 
1,

02
3,

65
1 

1,
90

1,
60

0 
87

7,
94

9 
46

.2
%

 

S
to

rm
w

at
er

 P
ro

gr
am

 
3,

44
2 

20
,6

52
 

41
,3

00
 

20
,6

48
 

50
.0

%
 

R
ec

yc
le

d 
W

at
er

 P
ro

gr
am

 
88

,8
82

 
89

8,
94

9 
2,

22
7,

00
0 

1,
32

8,
05

1 
59

.6
%

 

W
at

er
 Q

ua
lit

y 
an

d 
S

up
pl

y 
P

ro
gr

am
 

35
,6

80
 

34
4,

00
7 

62
3,

20
0 

27
9,

19
3 

44
.8

%
 

W
at

er
 P

ur
ch

as
es

 
1,

99
9,

51
3 

9,
83

1,
90

9 
57

,5
11

,3
00

 
47

,6
79

,3
91

 
82

.9
%

 

O
pe

ra
tin

g 
E

xp
en

se
s 

2,
94

8,
49

6 
13

,8
40

,3
76

 
65

,1
96

,4
00

 
51

,3
56

,0
24

 
78

.8
%

 

O
pe

ra
tin

g 
R

ev
en

ue
s 

8,
13

1,
94

3 
18

,6
83

,8
20

 
65

,3
99

,2
00

 
46

,7
15

,3
80

 
71

.4
%

 

N
et

 R
es

er
ve

 A
ct

iv
it:'.

 fr
om

 O
12e

ra
tio

ns
 (

-/
+)

 
5,

18
3,

44
7 

4,
84

3,
44

4 
20

2,
80

0 
n/

a 
n/

a 

C
ap

ita
l E

xp
en

di
tu

re
s 

19
7,

00
0 

19
7,

00
0 

10
0.

0%
 

C
ap

ita
l P

ro
gr

am
 R

ev
en

ue
s 

0.
0%

 

N
et

 C
ha

ng
e 

in
 C

as
h 

D
ue

 to
 C

ap
ita

l O
ut

la
ys

 
(1

97
,0

00
) 

n/
a 

n/
a 

T
ot

al
 C

ha
ng

e 
in

 F
un

d 
B

al
an

ce
s 

$ 
5,

18
3,

44
7 

$ 
4,

84
3,

44
4 

$ 
5,

80
0 

n/
a 

n/
a 

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

Y
T

D
 e

xp
en

se
s 

in
cl

ud
e 

pa
ym

en
t 

of
 a

nn
ua

l c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
to

 C
al

P
E

R
S

 r
el

at
ed

 
to

 U
pp

er
 D

is
tr

ic
t's

 u
nf

un
de

d 
ac

cr
ue

d 
lia

bl
ity

. 
A

nn
ua

l p
ro

vi
si

on
 f

or
 e

le
ct

io
n 

co
st

 w
ill

 n
ot

 b
e 

bo
ok

ed
 u

nt
il 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
02

6.
 

Y
T

D
 e

xp
en

se
s 

ar
e 

co
ns

is
te

nt
 w

ith
 b

ud
ge

te
d 

am
ou

nt
s.

 

Y
T

D
 e

xp
en

se
s 

ar
e 

co
ns

is
te

nt
 w

ith
 b

ud
ge

te
d 

am
ou

nt
s.

 

A
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 

31
st

, t
ot

al
 r

ec
yc

le
d 

w
at

er
 p

ur
ch

as
es

 is
 a

bo
ut

 1
,2

00
 A

F
, 

57
%

 o
f b

ud
ge

t.
 

Y
T

D
 e

xp
en

se
s 

ar
e 

co
ns

is
te

nt
 w

ith
 b

ud
ge

te
d 

am
ou

nt
s.

 

A
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 

31
st

, 
U

pp
er

 W
at

er
 h

as
 p

uc
ha

se
d 

2,
18

5 
A

F
 o

f t
re

at
ed

 
w

at
er

 a
nd

 3
1,

48
2 

A
F

 o
f u

nt
re

at
ed

 w
at

er
, 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
W

at
er

m
as

te
r's

 R
D

A
 

w
at

er
 p

ur
ch

as
es

 o
f 

23
,9

81
.8

0 
A

F
 a

nd
 U

pp
er

 W
at

er
's

 c
yc

lic
 s

to
ra

ge
 

pu
rc

ha
se

s 
of

 7
,5

00
 A

F
, b

ot
h 

to
 b

e 
pa

id
 in

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

26
. 

D
ec

em
be

r 
re

su
lts

 in
cl

ud
e 

W
at

er
m

as
te

r's
 n

et
 R

T
S

 s
ha

re
 o

f 
$5

.1
6 

m
ill

io
n 

fo
r 

F
Y

 2
5/

26
. R

ev
en

ue
 f

ro
m

 u
nt

re
at

ed
 w

at
er

 s
al

es
 in

 D
ec

em
be

r 
to

ta
lin

g 
23

,9
81

.8
0 

A
F

 w
ill

 b
e 

co
lle

ct
ed

 a
nd

 r
ep

or
te

d 
in

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

26
. 

fl.I
 

n
 

�
 

tD
 

::::J
 

....
 













248 E. Foothill Blvd., Suite 200 

Monrovia, CA, 91016   
P: 626-443-2297 E: info@usgvmwd.org 

MEMORANDUM 

UPPER SAN GABRIEL VALLEY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT upperwater.org 

Item 7. (h) 

CONSENT 

DATE: February 11, 2026 

TO: Board of Directors  

FROM: Government Affairs and Community Outreach Committee and General Manager 

SUBJECT: Water Education for Latino Leaders – Associate Membership 

_______________________________________________________________________________________ 

Recommend Action 

Government Affairs and Community Outreach Committee is seeking direction from the Board 

regarding the associate membership for Water Education for Latino Leaders.  

Background 

Water Education for Latino Leaders (WELL) is a statewide nonprofit organization that began its 

mission in 2012 by Victor Griego.  Over the years, WELL has that has trained more than 2,000 local 

elected officials and seeks to create a “bench” of elected officials composed of women, Latinos, 

and other people of color who are ready to take the helm and lead California toward sustainable 

water policies. WELL defines a Latino leader as any elected official representing a Latino 

constituency, which includes approximately 90 percent of elected officials in California. 

WELL accomplishes their work through a variety of programs, including the WELL UnTapped 

Fellowship Program, WELL UnTapped Network (WUN), legislative water workshops, annual 

conferences, regional workshops, webinars, and the La Cascada Newsletter. 

Upper Water has been an associate member of WELL for over 10 years.  Staff was notified three 

years ago that WELL had adjusted their membership levels, increasing the associate level to 

$15,000 annually.  Due to our longstanding partnership with WELL, we were able to hold our 

membership payment at $10,000 for the last three years.  

WELL is seeking for the 2026 renewal that Upper Water align with the current associate member 

level of $15,000.  Industry/Association memberships are paid out of the district’s Community 

Outreach Budget that has a line-item budget of $145,000. 

Staff is seeking direction from the Board on approving the membership increase for WELL to $15,000 

for FY 25-26.  A summary of membership benefits is attached.  

ATTACHMENT 



Invoice

Date

1/14/2026

Invoice #

2025-151

Bill To

Upper San Gabriel Valley WD

Atten: Patty Cortez

248 E Foothill Blvd,

Monrovia, CA 91016

930 Colorado Blvd Building 1

Los Angeles, CA 90041

Federal Tax ID No:84-3563310

501 (c)(3) Tax-exempt organization

Total

Make all checks payable to Water Education for Latino Leaders

If you have any questions concerning this invoice, contact Marrisa Stanley, Marissa@latinosforwater.org

or 909-670-2928

DescriptionQuantity Rate Amount

WELL ASSOCIATE MEMBERSHIP 2026

- Organization's logo will be featured as an Associate Member on our website

- Recognition in the WELL conference event digital

programs

- Recognition in monthly e-newsletter

- Recognition in WELL Webinar series as an

Associate Member

- Invitation to the WELL Untapped Fellowship

graduation dinner

- One article in WELL's newsletter

1 15,000.00 15,000.00

$15,000.00

Attachment



Item 9. (a) News Articles and Press Releases



























































 REPORT OF THE DISTRICT ENGINEER 
ON HYDROLOGIC CONDITIONS

FEBRUARY 11, 2026

Baldwin Park Key Well Reservoir Storage and Releases

 Groundwater Elevation
 December 2025 / January 2026

Groundwater 
Elevation (ft)

Difference from 
prior month (ft)

Difference from 
prior year (ft)

January 31, 2025 246.6

December 26, 2025 244.2

January 30, 2026 261.2 17 14.6

  Untreated Imported Water in Cyclic Storage Accounts

Producer Cyclic Storage 60,000 AF

MWD Cyclic Storage (For UD RDA Delivery) 135,000 AF

Other Cyclic Storage 23,000 AF San Gabriel Canyon Spreading Grounds
Total 218,000 AF*

*Represents about 27 feet of groundwater elevation at the Key Well

USG-3

• 

• Typical delivery rate is about 190 cfs (or about 375 AF per day)

* On September 24, 2025, all deliveries ceased due to the reported detection of Golden Mussels at Silverwood Lake by County Staff

Located in San Gabriel Canyon, just below Morris Dam, it represents 

Upper District's primary point of delivery of untreated imported water for 

groundwater replenishment to the San Gabriel Valley

140

160

180

200

220

240

260

280

Ju
l-9

7

Ju
l-9

8

Ju
l-9

9

Ju
l-0

0

Ju
l-0

1

Ju
l-0

2

Ju
l-0

3

Ju
l-0

4

Ju
l-0

5

Ju
l-0

6

Ju
l-0

7

Ju
l-0

8

Ju
l-0

9

Ju
l-1

0

Ju
l-1

1

Ju
l-1

2

Ju
l-1

3

Ju
l-1

4

Ju
l-1

5

Ju
l-1

6

Ju
l-1

7

Ju
l-1

8

Ju
l-1

9

Ju
l-2

0

Ju
l-2

1

Ju
l-2

2

Ju
l-2

3

Ju
l-2

4

Ju
l-2

5

Ju
l-2

6

E
L

E
V

A
T

IO
N

 IN
 F

E
E

T
 (

M
S

L
)

MONTH

Maximum Storage Capacity 

Cogswell Dam 10,475 AF
San Gabriel Dam 44,044 AF
Morris Dam 28,736 AF
Total Storage Capcaity 83,255 AF 

Combined Minimum Pool 10,500 AF
behind 3 Reservoirs 

Combined Storage as of 49,934 AF
January 30, 2026 or 60%

0 00 0
0

2,000
4,000
6,000
8,000

10,000

December 2025 January 2026

A
cr

e-
fe

et
 (

A
F)

Imported Deliveries through USG-3

Upper District Three Valleys

399 388

500 500

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

San Gabriel Reservoir Morris Reservoir

(C
fs

)

Reservoir Flow
As of: February 3, 2026

Inflow (cfs) Outflow (cfs)

0 00 00 0
0

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.8

1

December 2025 January 2026

A
cr

e-
fe

et
 (

A
F)

Imported Deliveries to San Gabriel Canyon

San Gabriel District Three Valleys/MWD Upper District

KEY WELL ELEVATION INCLUDING 
IMPORTED WATER IN CYCLIC 

STORAGE (MEASURED)

NATURAL KEY WELL 
ELEVATION  (CALCULATED)

IMPORTED WATER IN 
CYCLIC STORAGE

WATERMASTER 
OPERATING 

GUIDELINES FOR BASIN 
REPLACEMENT WATER

17 FEET MORE THAN LAST MONTH &  
15 FEET MORE THAN LAST YEAR 

(REPRESENTS 120,000 AF)

- The historical low was 169.4 feet on November 21, 2018 

Item 11. 
Engineer's Report



 REPORT OF THE DISTRICT ENGINEER 
ON HYDROLOGIC CONDITIONS

FEBRUARY 11, 2026

Rainfall

Water Quality

• During January 2026, 49 wells were sampled under Title 22

• During December 2025, 22 wells were sampled under Title 22

• During December 2025, Stetson Engineers Inc. received no public notice of wells shut down due to contamination

• Data are readily available on a daily basis and are indicative of comparative amount of rainfall in the San Gabriel Valley (percent of

average)

• Water Systems are required by the Division of Drinking Water (DDW) to collect water quality data from source wells and provide the

results to DDW Pursuant to Title 22 (Water quality data collected through Main San Gabriel Basin Watermaster's Basinwide Groundwater 

Quality Monitoring Program)

CURRENT YEAR 
RAINFALL IS       

22.46 INCHES *

AVERAGE 
RAINFALL

LAST YEAR 
RAINFALL

*Data as of January 31, 2026

AVERAGE 
RAINFALL

LAST YEAR 
RAINFALL

CURRENT YEAR 
RAINFALL IS       

13.04 INCHES *

*Data as of January 31, 2026



248 E. Foothill Blvd., Suite 200 

Monrovia, CA, 91016   
P: 626-443-2297 E: info@usgvmwd.org 

MEMORANDUM 

UPPER SAN GABRIEL VALLEY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT Page 1 of 3 

ITEM 12.

GENERAL MANAGER’S 

 REPORT 

General Manager’s Monthly Report 

February 11, 2026 

Work Anniversary: Tom Love, General Manager (7 years) 

Frank Aguilar, Facilities Technician (17 years) 

Venessa Navarrette, Executive Assistant (9 years) 

Alexis Silva, Public Affairs Assistant (1 year) 

Water Supply Update 

MWD Water Supply Conditions as of January 28, 2026, are summarized as follows: 

Reservoir Capacity Current Storage 

San Luis (SWP share) 1.06 MAF 93%, 984 TAF 

Lake Oroville 3.42 MAF   82%, 2.82 MAF 

Lake Powell 24.3 MAF   25%, 6.17 MAF 

Lake Mead 26.1 MAF   34%, 8.81 MAF 

*Storage volumes are in units of Million Acre-Feet (MAF), or Thousand Acre-Feet (TAF)

Water Use Efficiency 

 Residential Water$mart Rebates 

Since July 2025 - $112,908 

Commercial Water$mart Rebates 

Since July 2025 - $21,241 

Baldwin Park Key Well: 261.2 feet on 1/30/26 

San Gabriel Canyon: 49,934 AF combined     

storage as of 1/30/26 

San Gabriel Reservoir: inflow 399 cfs;  

release 500 cfs 

Morris Reservoir: inflow 388 cfs; release 500 cfs 

MWD 2026 Water Supply/Demand Balance 

Forecast: Supply Gap 33 TAF as of 2/4/26 

USG-3 deliveries during December 2025:  

None 

MWD Cyclic Account Balance (12/31/25): 

126,632 AF 

Rainfall as of 1/31/26:  

• 13.04” - Puddingstone Dam

• 22.46” - San Gabriel Dam

State Water Project Allocation:

30% as of 1/29/26

Drought Actions 
WSCP status: Level 2, 20% conservation target, 3 day/week outdoor watering summer, 

2 day/week outdoor watering in winter 



Page 2 of 3 

Education and Outreach 

Legislative Update 

Water Smart Home Kits 

Homes Served This Month: 15 

Landscape Workshops 

• Upper Water staff has secured the four landscape workshops for the winter/spring

season with Green Media Creations and Green Gardens Group (G3).

o Garden Design Seminar (in-person), presented by Green Media Creations on

Saturday, February 21st, from 10:00 a.m.-11:45 a.m. Location: Library

Community Room – 1115 El Centro St. South Pasadena, CA 91030

o Outdoor Leaks Waste Water (webinar), presented by G3 on Thursday, March

19th, at 6:00 p.m.

o Protect the Pollinators (webinar), presented by G3 on Thursday, April 16th, at

6:00 p.m.

Watershed Restoration Program 

• Upper Water staff has secured three dates with the U.S. Forest Service staff to plant

trees in the San Gabriel Mountains, near crystal lake. The tree planting events are

scheduled on the following Saturdays, from 8:00 a.m.-12:00 p.m.

o March 21, 2026

o April 18, 2026

o May 16, 2026

Federal Update 

• A partial government shutdown occurred after key agencies went unfunded,

though the House is now operating under a short-term DHS continuing resolution.

FEMA funding remains critical for local wildfire recovery.

• Proposals submitted on behalf of the district this past month focus on water

delivery, storage, and groundwater recharge under the Water Resources

Development Act.

• Additional updates include the Bureau of Reclamation’s draft Environmental

Impact Statement for the Colorado River, ongoing PFAS litigation against the

EPA, and congressional efforts to secure protections for the San Gabriel

Mountains and Rivers.

• ACWA D.C. is taking place this month, with Directors and staff participating in the

Legislative Advocacy Day.

Sacramento Updates 

• Prop 5 is in effect, triggering a special election for LaMalfa’s seat; key legislative

focus is on wildfires, water, and Golden Mussel cleanup, with potential

candidates emerging for the congressional and gubernatorial races.



Page 3 of 3 

Finance and Administration 

Financial Highlights through 12/31/25 

• Treated water sales: 2,185 AF

• Untreated water sales: 29,082 AF

• Recycled water sales: 1,200 AF

• YTD net operating revenue: $4.84M

Staffing Updates 

• 10 FTE’s, 2 Vacancies

• 1 Interim Consultant

• 1 Intern (promoted to grade H1, 12-15-25)

• January Anniversaries –

• Katherine Vazquez 3 years



Summary Report for 

The Metropolitan Water District of Southern California 

Board Meeting 

January 13, 2026 

CONSENT CALENDAR OTHER ITEMS - ACTION 

Approved Commendatory Resolution for Director Jeffrey D. Armstrong, representing Eastern 

Municipal Water District.  (Agenda Item 6B) 

Approved Committee Assignments and appointed: 

Director Paule as a member of the Finance, Affordability, Asset Management, and Efficiency 

Committee, and the Legislation and Communications Committee. 

Director Ramos as Chair of the Audit Committee, and as a member of the Special Committee on 

Ag and Tribal Partnerships. 

Director Crane as Vice Chair of the Audit Committee.  (Agenda Item 6C) 

OTHER BOARD ITEMS - ACTION 

Reviewed and considered Addendum No. 6 to the certified 2017 Programmatic Environmental 

Impact Report for the Prestressed Concrete Cylinder Pipe Rehabilitation Program, and 

a. Awarded a $61,242,000 contract to J.F. Shea Construction Inc. to rehabilitate Sepulveda

Feeder Reach 2.

b. Authorized an agreement with HDR Engineering Inc. for a not-to-exceed amount of

$1,300,000 for technical support during construction.  (Agenda Item 8-1)

Approved guiding principles for Pure Water Southern California partnerships with the following 

amendments: 

1. The addition of the following language to the Guiding Principles for each partnership:

Project participants recognize that Pure Water Southern California has been developed to

allow for long-term adaptive implementation, including: (1) by allowing for phasing

and/or staging funding and construction, and (2) if feasible and permittable, by allowing

for direct potable reuse.

2. In the Proposed Principles to Guide the Metropolitan – Southern Nevada/Arizona Parties

Partnership and in the Proposed Principles to Guide Metropolitan – Others within the

Southern California Region: San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District, changed the term

“equity” to the term “fair value.”  (Agenda Item 8-2)

Item 13. Metropolitan Report



-2-

Approved a limited waiver of the Brown Act closed session privilege regarding the closed 

session meeting of the Organization, Personnel, and Effectiveness Committee on October 14, 

2025, for the limited purpose of conducting an attorney-client privileged investigation overseen 

by the Ethics Office, and authorized Metropolitan staff and directors present during the 

October 14, 2025 closed session Committee meeting to disclose information from the closed 

session to the assigned investigator pursuant to the limited waiver.  (Agenda Item 8-3) 

Approved option #1 as set forth in the confidential board letter and directed in closed session.  

(Agenda Item 8-4) 

THIS INFORMATION SHOULD NOT BE CONSIDERED THE OFFICIAL MINUTES 

OF THE MEETING. 

All current month materials, and materials after July 1, 2021 are available on the public website 

here: https://mwdh2o.legistar.com/Calendar.aspx 

This database contains archives from the year 1928 to June 30, 2021: 

https://bda.mwdh2o.com/Pages/Default.aspx 

https://mwdh2o.legistar.com/Calendar.aspx
https://bda.mwdh2o.com/Pages/Default.aspx


14.
WQA REPORT 

1 of 1 | P a g e

Summary Report for the 

San Gabriel Basin Water Quality Authority 

January 21, 2026 

The Board of Directors discussed the following items: 

• Election of Officers

a) Chairman

b) Vice-Chairman

c) Treasurer

d) Secretary

• Appointment of committee members

a) Administrative/Finance Committee

b) Legislative/Public Information Committee

• Adoption of Resolution 26-001, Authorizing the Extension of the Contract with

BMO Bank and Authorizing Board Officers to Contract for Service and Establish

Accounts with BMO Bank

A closed session was held pursuant to Government Code 54956.9 Section(d)(4) – 

Conference with Legal Counsel re: Initiation of Litigation (settlement opportunities with 

potential defendants) – two (2) matters. 



1 of 1| P a g e

15.

WATERMASTER  

REPORT 

Summary Report for the 

Main San Gabriel Basin Watermaster 

Regular Board Meeting 

January 7, 2026 

• The Board of Directors cast a unanimous ballot for 2026 Watermaster

Officers:

o Lynda Noriega, Chair

o David Michalko, Vice-Chair

o Cris Fealy, Secretary

o Melissa Barbosa, Treasurer

• The Board of Directors held a Public Hearing on Watermaster Draft Five-Year

Water Quality and Supply Plan.

• The Board of Directors adopted the Five-Year Water Quality and Supply

Plan as presented.

• The Board of Directors adopted Resolution No. 01-26-342, Supporting Pure

Water Southern California

• The Board of Directors received and filed the Replacement

Water/Surcharge Accounting.



248 E. Foothill Blvd., Suite 200 

Monrovia, CA, 91016   
P: 626-443-2297 E: info@usgvmwd.org 

MEMORANDUM 

UPPER SAN GABRIEL VALLEY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT upperwater.org 

Directors’ Activity Report – (AB 1234) 

In accordance with CA Government Code Section 53232.3 (d) 

January 2026 

Jennifer Santana, Division 5 

Item 16.

AB 1234 Compliance Report 

 Anthony R. Fellow, Division 1 

Date Event Description/Topics 

January 2026 No reportable activity 

Date Event Description/Topics 

January 2026 No reportable activity 

Charles M. Treviño, Division 2 

Edward Chavez, Division 3 

Date Event Description/Topics 

January 2026 No reportable activity 

Katarina Garcia, Division 4 

Date Event Description/Topics 

January 2026 No reportable activity 

Date Event Description/Topics 

January 2026 No reportable activity 


	Agenda
	Item 6. (a) Committee Report
	Item 6. (b) Committee Report
	Item 6. (c) Committee Report
	Item 7 (a) Minutes
	Item 7 (b) List of Demands
	Item 7. (c-1) Financial Reports
	Item 7. (c-2) Financial Reports
	Item 7. (d) Consent
	Item 7. (e-g) Consent
	Item 7. (h) Consent
	Item 9. (a) News Articles and Press Releases
	Item 11. Engineer's Report
	Item 12. General Manager's Report
	Item 13. Metropolitan Report
	Item 14. WQA Report
	Item 15. Watermaster Report
	Item 16. AB 1234 Compliance Report



